KENTUCKY DENTAL ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING

Zoom Meeting March 1, 2025 9:00 A.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER. Dr. Samantha Shaver called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. The following members of the KDA Board were present:

Dr. Thomas Carroll
Dr. Ansley Depp
Dr. Stetson Earl
Dr. Andy Elliott
Dr. Rachel Gold
Dr. Laura Hancock Jones

Dr. Margaret Hill (U of L interim dean) Dr. Matthew Johnson

Dean Jill Keaton
Dr. Paul Lavelle

Dr. Cliff Lowdenback

Dr. Julie McKee
Dr. Matt Milliner
Dr. Charles Montague
Dean Jeff Okeson
Dr. Kaitlyn Patel
Dr. Jonathan Rich
Dr. Samantha Shaver
Dr. Zak Taylor

Dr. Kate VonLackum Dr. Kevin Wall

- 2. Guests included Dr. Fred Howard, Dr. Darren Greenwell, Dr. Garth Bobrowski and Dr. Gina Davis. UK student Myranda Elliott was in attendance. Mr. Jeff Allen of the Kentucky Board of Dentistry and Mr. William Amshoff of Welenken CPAs were also present. Staff members present were Dr. Stephen Robertson, Mr. Todd Edwards, Mrs. Melissa Nathanson, and Mrs. Janet Glover.
- 3. INVOCATION. Dr. Garth Bobrowski gave the invocation.
- 4. INTRODUCTION OF VISITORS. Dr. Samantha Shaver introduced the following guests: Mr. William Amshoff of Welenken CPAs and Dr. Darren Greenwell.
- **5. CONFLICT OF INTERST. Dr Samantha Shaver** asked everyone in attendance if there were any updates to the conflicts of interest that have been reported previously. No updates were reported.
- **6. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR.** The minutes of the October 5, 2024, meeting of the Executive Board were approved. Reports from the Components, KDPAC and the Frankfort Update were also approved.
- 7. TREASURER'S REPORT. Mr. William Amshoff of Welenken CPAS reviewed the year end financials for 2024.
- Dr. Kevin Wall reviewed the December 31, 2024 Budget Performance Report

KENTUCKY DENTAL ASSOCIATION GENERAL FUND REVENUE & EXPENSE BUDGET PERFORMANCE REPORT

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2025

	Year to Date Actual	Annual Budget
REVENUES		
Budgeted Revenues		
KDA dues	402,834.80	375,000.00
KDA Assessment	67,775.00	80,000.00
Annual Session net revenue	58,355.75	85,000.00
Interest Income	7,856.00	2,000.00
Rental Income-	68,600.00	62,400.00
Rental Income-LDS	5,410.00	5,410.00
KDAIS	18,000.00	18,000.00
ADA Dues Rebates	1,208.42	500.00
ADABEI (ADA)	10,556.93	22,000.00
Other Revenue	211.47	500.00
Total Budgeted Revenue	640,808.37	650,810.00
Non-Budgeted Revenues		
Gain/Loss on Investments	11,713.00	0.00
Journal Fund Expenses	0.00	105,096.00
MId States Mtg	18,827.88	0.00
Total Non-Budgeted Revenue	30,540.88	105,096.00
	\$	\$
TOTAL REVENUE	671,349.25	755,906.00

Year to Date Annual Actual Budget

EXPENSES Budgeted Expenses

A. Fixed disbursements over which the HOD has no control but must have approval

T	Tti	1;	ties	Q_r	M	ain	ten	ana	۰۵۰
ι	лл		LIES	CX	IVI	am	161	12111	. T.

	\$	\$
Telephone	9,591.43	8,500.00
Gas, Electric & Water	26,853.30	25,000.00
RENT	86,430.72	86,431.00
Maintenance Expense	21,614.11	18,500.00
Janitorial Expenses	11,053.04	10,500.00
Total Utilities & Maintenance	155,542.60	148,931.00
Audit & Accounting Services	19,125.00	19,000.00
Attorney Fees	17,706.00	1,000.00
Insurance	12,376.97	13,000.00
Printing and Postage	1,783.94	2,000.00
Miscellaneous	974.78	1,000.00
Personal Property taxes	276.99	325.00
	\$	\$
A. TOTAL	207,786.28	185,256.00

B. Items Controlled by the House Of Delegates

General Administrative Expenses:

deneral Manimistrative Expenses.		
•	\$	\$
Equipment Maint & Rent	28,052.79	22,000.00
Technological Support	10,712.40	8,000.00
Membership Dues & Subs	820.00	750.00
Support Staff Expense	0.00	1,800.00
Office Supplies	2,360.83	3,000.00
KOHC Membership	300.00	300.00
Presidents Expense	0.00	1,500.00
1st Vice President's Expenses	0.00	500.00
Fall Meeting Leadership Conf.	0.00	500.00
Executive Board Expense	999.87	1,500.00
ADA Delegates Expense	31,341.60	36,500.00
Ex. Dir. Discretionary Expense	0.00	750.00
Secty-Treas. Expense	3,650.00	3,650.00
Auto Expense	0.00	5,000.00

Year to Date	Annual
Actual	Budget

78,237.49

85,750.00

Council/Work Group Expenses:

Total Administrative Exp.

Council on Ethics, Bylaws		
Council on Governmental Affairs		
Budget & Finance Committee		
Long Range Planning Committee		
New Dentists Committee	0.00	2,000.00
General Council Expense	0.00	250.00
UK-UL-KSDS Support	1,794.67	5,000.00
Total Council/Committee/Work Group Steer	1,794.67	7,250.00
B. TOTAL	\$ 80,032.16	\$ 93,000.00
D. TOTAL	00,032.10	75,000.00

C. Disbursements Annually Approved and Controlled by the House of Delegates				
	\$	\$		
Executive Directors Expense	13,632.61	11,000.00		
Salaries-Executive Staff	395,000.00	395,000.00		
Retirement Plan Contributions	15,800.00	15,800.00		
Executive Staff Benefits	39,997.77	30,000.00		
Personal Payroll Taxes	33,105.47	25,000.00		
	\$	\$		
C. TOTAL	497,535.85	476,800.00		
m . In I . In	\$	\$		
Total Budgeted Expenses	785,354.29	755,056.00		
D. Fund Contributions				
D TOTAL	\$	\$		
D. TOTAL	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00		
D. TOTAL E. Non-budgeted Expenses	•	\$ 0.00		
•	•	\$ 0.00 \$		
•	0.00			
E. Non-budgeted Expenses	0.00	\$		
E. Non-budgeted Expenses MID STATES EXPENSES	\$ 13,119.94 1,347.00	\$ 0.00		
E. Non-budgeted Expenses MID STATES EXPENSES Investment Fees	\$ 13,119.94 1,347.00	\$ 0.00 850.00		
E. Non-budgeted Expenses MID STATES EXPENSES	\$ 13,119.94 1,347.00	\$ 0.00 850.00		
E. Non-budgeted Expenses MID STATES EXPENSES Investment Fees	\$ 13,119.94 1,347.00	\$ 0.00 850.00		
E. Non-budgeted Expenses MID STATES EXPENSES Investment Fees	\$ 13,119.94 1,347.00 \$ 14,466.94	\$ 0.00 850.00 \$ 850.00		
E. Non-budgeted Expenses MID STATES EXPENSES Investment Fees	\$ 13,119.94 1,347.00	\$ 0.00 850.00		

Year to Date

Actual

Annual

Budget

This report does not reflect the year end adjusting entries from the KDA's accountant.

8. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT. Dr. Matt Milliner gave the following report.

The last several months have kept me busy. Our duties as members of the Executive Board and leadership occur outside of our work as business owners and providers. In an effort to serve the KDA, I have used my time as best possible to maintain communication with our ED, 1st and 2nd VPs, Libby Milligan, and anyone else who required my time and effort. I will list my activities and efforts.

- 1) Legislative Duties I remain in contact with Steve and Libby regarding HB 210 (AOB), any Medicaid updates, HB 16 (Fluoride), and any other issue that may affect the profession during this session. As important as water fluoridation has been to US citizens for preventive purposes, I recognize that we must continue to provide the best possible information to our legislators and allow them to make whatever decision they deem necessary. We will not die on this legislative hill, but will move forward in service of patients and members with both bills. Steve and I speak often, and at length. This accounts for much of my KDA efforts throughout a typical week in the last few months.
- 2) Society Visits
 - a. January 16, 2025 Louisville Dental Society Malone's Stenhouse (Great Venue!). Steve and I presented our Legislative update. Sam spoke about key contacts and giving to the KDPAC. The CE speaker was a prosthodontist in the LDS area. I suggest we recruit her to speak at a KDA meeting. Great presentation!
 - b. January 30, 2025 Bluegrass Dental Society. Sam, Libby, and I visited BG at The Melodeon. We spoke for about 20 minutes with the group, but exchanged conversation individually and small groups for most of the meeting. Dr. Julie McKee provided information about Fluoride and Medicaid pieces. Many thanks for her assistance!
 - c. Upcoming Meetings Green River (February 27, 2025) and NKDS (March 19, 2025).
- 3) 3Ps Meetings I asked Sam and Rachel if they would like to meeting every 2-3 weeks by Zoom to address any particular issues. We have met 4 times as I write this. Steve and Darren joined us on one call. We plan to have Steve and Fred Howard on the upcoming one. Sam can determine if she wishes to continue this, but I find it helpful to discuss current issues and receive updates. We bounce ideas around and while this is new, I suspect it could serve us well into the future.
- 4) Component Society Presidents After speaking with my own Society president last week and receiving positive feedback regarding the communication, I worked with Todd to compile a list of these officers. Please keep these lists updated each year! Four of the listed presidents I knew were not in those offices. I have two unknowns I am still working on. I plan to reach out by email to my component counterparts with updates at least twice as I finish out my presidential year.
- 5) KDA Legislative Day I waited to submit my report until after February 19. However, I have little to report since winter weather left us with a decision to cancel. Thank you to all who planned to attend, and especially those who reached out to their representatives (and senators).
- 6) CGA I have attended two CGA meetings since Dr. Greenwell took over as chairman. We are in good hands with his leadership and the great mix of dentists working on the council. I appreciate their efforts and willingness to serve in this capacity.
- 7) Budgetary Tracking With the introduction of KDA3P and any other sources of non-dues revenue, I would like to better understand the cash flow of the organization. This comes at a time where we continue to experience struggles with membership, and therefore dues may not reach the anticipated levels for budgetary sustainability. The annual session occurs later in the year, and we lack knowledge about gains or losses until the end of the 3rd quarter. The Executive Board may need to make adjustments with expenses in a timely fashion but cannot address any necessary concerns without timely data.

ACTION ITEM: Establish quarterly reporting of revenue and expenses throughout the year. The Secretary-Treasurer can work with Todd and Wellenken CPAs (as needed) to run basic reports such as those produced from Quickbooks or another financial software to update the EB at the end of each quarter. A comparison of revenues and expenses compared to the adopted yearly budget should also be provided for EB review. I recognize this will take a little time for those compiling the information as well as each Board member to review, but I am looking for a report no more than 1-3 pages to explain our financial position on a quarterly basis.

- 9. REPORT OF THE SECOND VICE PRESIDENT. Dr Rachel Gold gave a verbal report concerning membership.
- 10. REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. Dr. Stephen Robertson submitted the following report:

Report of the Executive Director Kentucky Dental Association February 14, 2025

I wish to start by saying that I will be reporting to you on several activities that we are currently in the middle of, hopefully with a conclusion on the very near horizon. Frankfort update:

HB210 Dental Assignment of Benefits has been filed and assigned to the House Banking and Insurance committee. As of this writing it has not been called for a hearing although Libby Milligan, our lobbyist, and I have met with the chair and numerous committee members. At this time, I would characterize our bill as on a positive track, all conversations are well received, and we continue to sign on co-sponsors. There have been challenges and will be. This is why it is imperative that you encourage your members to sign up for the text alert program and follow through with contact requests for legislators. Hearing from constituents is what could push this past the finish line.

There have now been anti-fluoridation bills filed in the House and Senate. On February 13, Robert F Kennedy, Jr was confirmed as Health Secretary. He has frequently made public comments that he will ban fluoride. This situation remains fluid. We had an early win with the House bill being assigned to Health Services for a hearing rather than State Government as in previous years.

Public Health Dental Hygiene. There have now been 2 bills filed dealing with PHRDH in Kentucky. The KDA has agreed to support a bill adding the availability of these providers to FQHCs in our state. The second bill was filed the day prior to this writing, and we have not had time to do a full review. It deals with allowing the hygienists at university-based extension clinics to be able to continue their work even if there is no dentist on site. This is the explanation of the bill sponsor, Rep. Chris Freeland. We will have more information to share at the March 1 meeting.

Pre-Authorization. We have agreed to support a bill filed by Rep. Kim Moser, and backed by the KMA and others, that places parameters on pre-authorizations in limited health plans. There is limited application to dental, save possibly oral surgeons, or sleep appliance coverage.

Medicaid. We are in an interesting position with Medicaid. With the great unknown being what is ultimately going to happen at the Federal level affecting our program. As you are aware, at the close of the last session \$25 million was set aside for Medicaid fee rebasing, with dental being the only group mentioned by name. An outside group was brought in to review the actions and functioning of the Department and the MCOs and evaluate the reimbursement levels. We met wit the group completing this task and they fully understand our position, and agree we are underfunded. Their report on dental was due on January 29, but to date has not been delivered as they are still waiting for complete data from the Department. We are hopeful that we will be able to move forward with our plans, but we are in wait and see mode. Full implementation would include a statute directing payment schedules to the MCOs, and the bill filing deadline is rapidly approaching. Please remember anything we accomplish during this session is simply a short-term gap, as it exists outside the budget. We must return to this fight next spring to ensure continued funding in an ongoing basis.

Legislative Day will be held on Wednesday, February 19. Several students from both schools are planning to attend. A full report will be offered at the 3/1 meeting.

By now most of you are aware of the massive changes occurring at the ADA. On top of changes to our Governance structure, our membership program, and our membership management system (which has been a great challenge,) our Executive Director Dr. Raymond Cohlmia resigned on February 8. Dr. Cohlmia was a true visionary who has pointed the ADA in a direction preparing us for future success. It is now our job to carry these tasks to the end and complete this journey. The Board has appointed Dr. Elizabeth (Betsy) Shapiro as interim director, and I am certain that she will do a fine job. Dr. Shapiro had been serving as Vice-President of

Governance and brings the detailed-oriented focus necessary to help us reach our goals. We all thank Dr. Cohlmia for his service and efforts and pledge our support to Dr. Shapiro on the road ahead.

In the coming months the KDA is planning to start on a focused plan of increasing membership and revitalizing our components. More information is to come on these efforts.

The KDA recently participated in the UKCD ASDA day on February 7 and will be attending ULSD ASDA day on March 3. We are also in the process of planning our annual national signing day events for graduating fourth year students at both schools. UKCD is scheduled April 16, while the ULSD date is pending.

Just a reminder that the KDA annual meeting has been moved to the Crowne Plaza hotel near the airport due to scheduling conflicts with the Galt House. The Plaza is a Galt House property but has amenities which should make folks happy. We will have the ability to have hospitality suites, if desired, and there is free parking at the hotel. The annual sessions council and speakers group are far along in meeting preparation and scheduling and the preliminary program should be out much sooner than the last few years.

Recently the KDA met with an elder care group associated with the PACE program in Kentucky which promotes and supports at-home care of seniors in our state. We may want to **consider establishing an elder care work group** to review what options exist in Kentucky and see if we can come up with any ideas or plans to assist this population.

Sincerely Submitted, Dr Stephen W Robertson

11. REPORT OF THE 6TH DISTRICT TRUSTEE. Dr Fred Howard presented the following report: Report from the 6th District Trustee to the American Dental Association

On February 8, 2025, Dr. Raymond Cohlmia resigned from his position as the ADA Executive Director. Dr. Cohlmia brought an incredible vision to the ADA that has been adopted by our association and is in the process of being implemented. To continue this path, the ADA Board has named Elizabeth Shapiro, DDS, JD as interim ADA Executive Director. Dr. Shapiro previously served as Chief of Governance and Strategy Management of the ADA.

The Strategic Forecast adopted by the ADA House of Delegates in October guides the work of councils, committees, workgroups and task forces. The ADA Forsyth Institute has a new facility in Boston and will begin the certification of professional products.

Membership and Engagement pilots have begun in 5 constituents. 2 additional constituents, Connecticut and Michigan have begun Group Practice Membership pilots. A pilot to offer a 50% reduction in ADA dues to full-time faculty members has been rolled out nationwide.

Elevate, a new leadership event developed by the New Dentist Committee will be held March 28-30, 2025, and followed by the ADA Dentist / Student Lobby Day, March 30-April 1, 2025, in Washington, DC.

Implementation of Fonteva / Salesforce continues to be a challenge across the country. The top priority for the ADA is the stabilization of our Association Management System.

The upcoming launch of the ADA Credit Union will allow the ADA to offer more products and services to our members.

Congratulations to Dr. Mark Moats who is the current Chair of the Council on Dental Benefit Programs.

Respectfully submitted,

Fred Howard, DMD, 6th District Trustee American Dental Association howardf@ada.org 606-273-3999

12. REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY OF KENTUCY COLLEGE OF DENTISTRY.

University of Kentucky College of Dentistry Kentucky Dental Association Executive Report

February 2025

College Updates

Faculty & Staff Updates

- **Dr. Dolph Dawson** was nominated by the American Academy of Periodontology (AAP) and appointed by the Commission on Dental Accreditation (CODA) to serve on the Commission's Review Committee on Periodontics Education. The four-year term began October 2024 and ends in 2028.
- **Dr. H. Fred Howard** began a 4-year term on the American Dental Association Board of Trustees in October representing the 6th District, which is comprised of the states of Kentucky, Missouri, Tennessee, and West Virginia.
- **Dr. Mauro Santamaria** just became the new editorial board member of the *Journal of Periodontal Research*, one of the most prestigious journals in the Periodontics field.

Publications & Presentations

- **Dr. James Hartsfield** presented "Development of the Vertical Dimension in Children" at the Midwestern Society of Orthodontists meeting in Rosemont, IL on October 26, 2024.
- **Dr. Ian Boggero** visited Walter Reed Military Hospital to give a two-day workshop to the Orofacial Pain Clinic to teach them to do a psychological intervention for pain.
- **Dr. James Hartfield** co-authored a chapter in a recently published textbook: C Nishio, JK Hartsfield, A Nanci: Facial Growth and Development. Chapter 14, In: Ten Cate's Oral Histology: Development, Structure, and Function, tenth edition. A Nanci, ed. Elsevier. St. Louis, MO, pages 316-326, 2024. Paperback ISBN: 9780323798952, eBook ISBN: 9780323798969.
- **Dr. Octavio A. Gonzalez** has recently participated as invited speaker at the Colombian Association of Periodontology and Osseointegration. Dr. Gonzalez participated in the symposium about Aging and Periodontal Disease with Drs. Panos N. Papapanou and Alpagodan Kantarci
- **Dr. Jeffrey Okeson** "TMD: Facts and Fantasies" The 50th Anniversary of the Academy of Dentistry International, San Antonio, Texas. November 9, 2024
- Ahmad Kutkut, DDS, MS, PhD; Ryan White, DMD; Mohammad Awad, DMD; James Brown, DMD; Lina Sharab, DDS, MS, MSc; Gregory S. Hawk, PhD; Craig S. Miller, DMD, MS. Prevalence of Decay and Tooth Condition Changes Adjacent to Restored Dental Implants: A Retrospective Radiographic Study. J Oral Implantol. 2024 Oct 1;50(5):474-480. doi: 10.1563/aaid-joi-D-24-00044. PMID: 39069796.
- Oyler, D. R., Westgate, P. M., Walsh, S. L., Dolly Prothro, J., Miller, C. S., Roberts, M. F., Freeman, P. R., Knudsen, H. K., Lang, M., Dominguez-Fernandez, E., & Rojas-Ramirez, M. V. (2024). Alternatives to dental opioid prescribing after tooth extraction (ADOPT): protocol for a stepped wedge cluster randomized trial. *BMC Oral Health*, 24(1), Article 414. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12903-024-04201-0

- **Morford, L. A.**, Allareddy, V., & Rengasamy Venugopalan, S. (Accepted/In press). Application of genome and exome sequencing to study craniofacial conditions—A primer. *Seminars in Orthodontics*. https://doi.org/10.1053/j.sodo.2024.05.010
- Stolf, C. S., Pereira, A. G. S., Almeida, B. C., Paz, H. E. S., Arroteia, L. S., Huang, H., Aukhil, I., Harrison, P., Miguel, M. M. V., Ferraz, L. F. F., **Santamaria, M. P., Shaddox, L. M.**, & Casarin, R. C. V. (2024). Association of RS1126478 (LTF) with molar-incisor and generalized periodontitis. *Clinical Oral Investigations*, 28(12), Article 653. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00784-024-06056-9
- **Sharab, L.**, Shafi, A., Butul, B., & Okeson, J. P. (2024). Clear aligner therapy and symptoms of temporomandibular disorders: a case report. *General Dentistry*, 72(6), 47-52.
- SantaCruz-Calvo, S., Saraswat, S., Hasturk, H., **Dawson, D.**, Zhang, X., & Nikolajczyk, B. S. (2024). Periodontitis and Diabetes Differentially Affect Inflammation in Obesity. *Journal of Dental Research*, 103(12), 1313-1322. https://doi.org/10.1177/00220345241280743
- Bora, P. V., Lawson, N. C., Givan, D. A., Arce, C., & Roberts, H. (Accepted/In press). Enamel wear
 and fatigue resistance of 3D printed resin compared with lithium disilicate. *Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.prosdent.2024.10.024
- Schoenbaum, T. R., Papaspyridakos, P., Kim, Y. K., Arce, C., & Knoernschild, K. (2024). Clinician preferences for single-unit implant restoration designs and materials: A survey of the membership of the Pacific Coast Society for Prosthodontics. *Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry*, 132(6), 1288-1298. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.prosdent.2023.02.010
- Sangalli, L., Alessandri-Bonetti, A., Sawicki, C., Rao, J., Yanez-Regonesi, F., & Moreno-Hay, I. (Accepted/In press). Sleep medicine education in the United States advanced dental education programs. *Journal of Dental Education*. https://doi.org/10.1002/jdd.13704
- **Dr. Luciana Shaddox** participated in the NIH's National Advisory Dental & Craniofacial Research study section in October 2024
- **Dr. Shaddox** was invited to speak at the U. Penn Dental Medicine Deans Seminar Series and to be the keynote speaker at the Rutgers Dental School Research Day.
- **Dr. Mauro Santamaria** was the keynote speaker at the International Meeting of the Argentinian Society of Periodontology in November.
- Visit the UK scholars to see all publications from the UKCD family: (https://scholars.uky.edu/en/organisations/college-of-dentistry). UKCD faculty and students produced 62 publications in 2024.

Research

Grants Award:

• Our areas of focus for UKCD have been in the areas of inflammation, microbiology and most recently pain and opioid use. The research at UKCD has grown tremendously in external funding obtained to support research. See graph below.



Figure 1. UKCD awards FY2020-2025 (note 2025 is partial data).

• We have grown from \$700K college research annual revenue at the end of the Cobre grant in 2020 to \$4.7M in FY 2024 (see *figure 1* above), with 22 active externally funded projects ongoing. We continue to grow. This year (2025) we expect this number to grow above 5M, given 2 new awards received from industry and higher annual award amounts on our federal grants.

Awards received this past year include:

- **Dr. Marcia Rojas** studying opioids treatment and oral health (\$1.3M from National Institutes of Health).
- **Dr. Luciana Shaddox** studying susceptibility patterns of periodontal disease in young individuals around the world (collaborations with South America, Africa, Europe, and several US universities, \$1.3M from National Institutes of Health)
- **Dr. Octavio Gonzalez** studying role of host responses in periodontal disease (\$494K from National Institutes of Health)
- **Dr. Ian Boggero** studying the role of telemedicine interventions to mitigate oral facial pain (\$131K from National Institutes of Health)
- **Dr. Burt/Elwany** led the initiative from HRSA to continue to attend patients with HIV in our adult Dentistry Clinic (\$120K).
- **Dr. Singer and Dr Stein** led the KY Cabinet for health and Family Services block grant this year to aid in student loan repayment as well as important surveillance of oral health in our state as well as service to our population (\$1,2M).

This surveillance screened over 6K children from ages 2-5 years old and found continued high levels of untreated caries in our state. UKCD formed a task force on dental workforce now working on initiatives to change the workforce landscape in our state for the future.

- **Dr. Santamaria** was awarded an Internal IRC award of \$50,000 to study wound healing patterns post-periodontal surgical intervention.
- **Dr. Miller** was awarded \$98K from Delta Dental to study salivary biomarkers in periodontal disease.

- **Dr. Stein, Shaddox** and a team of investigators from UK College of Communications have secured a \$200K grant from Merck on barriers to HPV vaccinations and dental provider role in these.
- **Dr. Shaddox, Miller, Winfrey, Sacks, DeVito and Santamaria** secured an internal Impact grant from the UK provost to renovate clinical research space and create a multidisciplinary learning environment for our students as well as modify curriculum to include critical thinking activities and award 10 pilot studies for junior investigators paired with students for various areas of studies: biomaterials for caries and wound healing, health disparities and social determinants of health, Teledentistry and oral facial pain, periodontal disease and gut health, among others.

Other news:

• **Dr. Luciana Shaddox** was appointed to the Board of Directors of the Task Force on Design and Analysis in Oral Health Research.

The Task Force on Design and Analysis in Oral Health Research is a "think tank" of clinical researchers, basic scientists, biostatisticians, epidemiologists, and other quantitative scientists with experience in oral health research and/or clinical trials. It is a non-profit organization that includes individuals from universities, private research centers, government, and industry. The Task Force has made numerous contributions to dental research, especially in clinical trial methodology.

- Dr. Pratishtah Mishra, Courtney Brown, and Dr. Luciana Shaddox presented at the University of Kentucky Women's Forum annual conference. "Standing Strong: Empowering Women to Define Their Path" on December 10 in the UK Gatton Student Center. They talked about initiatives and mentoring within and outside UK Dentistry in their presentation, "Empowering Women in Science and Academia."
- **Dr. Luciana Shaddox** was appointed to AADOCR government Affairs committee. This is an appointment of 3 years to assist AADOCR with funding initiatives and representation on Capitol Hill.

Research Events

- The 3rd AADOCR Kentucky Fall symposium was a success! The event happened on October 9, 2024 at the Spindletop, Lexington and included 106 attendees from both University of Kentucky college of Dentistry as well as University of Louisville faculty and students! We had The AADOCR president, Dr. Effie Ioannidou as a keynote speaker, 2 oral presentations from our UKCD faculty and 2 oral presentations from UoL faculty to showcase their research, as well as 2 student oral pitch-presentations and 36 posters to follow.
- The **KNAPP lecture** was held in conjunction with the alumni event in Louisville this past October and Dr. Santamaria was our keynote speaker talking about non-carious lesions associated with gingival recession and treatment approaches.
- **S3 lunch and learn meetings** presented at UKCD in the last 3 months included the topics of libraries data management resources, statistics, and AI in Dentistry.
- Our next CCTS UKCD research day meeting is set to occur on April 1, 2025, at the central bank location. Registrations are open until march 31st to attend (https://www.ccts.uky.edu/education-training-0/2025-ccts-spring-conference)
 - and our Keynote speaker will be Dr. Luigi Nibali, from Kings College, London, and he will be speaking about his biobank initiative at Kings and how that sparked a lot of great studies from his team!

Philanthropy

- Mr. Bobby Helton and Dr. Ron Singer were again awarded the Women in Philanthropy grant for a second year. This \$50,000 grant will be used to support many programs in our Division of Public Health, especially our participation in RAM events.
- 16 students from the Class of 2025 have matched into residency programs so far. They include:
 - 4-AEGD
 - 3-GPR
 - 3-OMFS
 - 1-Oral Pathology
 - 1-Orthodontics
 - 4-Pediatrics
- UK College of Dentistry has launched a fundraising effort to renovate its Orthodontic Graduate Clinic. Marketing materials have been developed. Dean Okeson, Dr. Tom Kluemper and Linda Epling have met with UKCD alumni in North Carolina, Georgia, Louisville, Cincinnati/Northern Kentucky, Nashville, and Bowling Green. Overall response has been positive.
- Delta Dental of Kentucky will continue its support of UK College of Dentistry with donations to underwrite the Saturday Morning Clinic, the Alumni Association's Wellness Retreat, new sealant trailer and the 2025's payment for a 4-year scholarship.
- Bien-Air, Mortenson Dental Partners and Dr. Betty Barr & Dr. Don Kleier have renewed their support for their named scholarships.
- Dean Okeson hosted Emeritus Faculty for a luncheon at Malone's where they networked, and he provided a college update.
- Multiple faculty and the Director of Philanthropy met with two dental companies, Envista and ASI Dental Specialties, to launch a relationship with both of them.
- The Director of Philanthropy made visits to alumni and friends of the College to share a college update in North Carolina, Cincinnati/Northern Kentucky, Lexington, and Mt. Sterling.
- The UKCD Class of 67 Memorial Fund has been renamed the Dr. Alvin Morris Memorial Scholarship.
- UKCD's Philanthropy and Alumni Relations office assisted the UK Alumni Association in preparing an article on Dr. Greg White for the UK alumni magazine.
- The Pathways to Dentistry taskforce composed of alumni, faculty and staff continued to meet. Two committees (Lawrence and Fulton/Hickman Counties) at the local level worked on plans to introduce dentistry to middle and high school students. A memorandum of understanding was finalized with Lawrence County Schools to formalize the relationship and co-fund the purchase of software on dental careers to be used in Lawrence County's Project Lead The Way. UKCD donated an older dental chair to Lawrence County Schools. The local 4-H agent has been added to the local groups. Alumni in Louisa, Fulton, South Fulton, Carlisle, Paducah, Murray, and Benton have either been engaged in the Pathways to Dentistry project or offered their support.

Alumni Relations

UKCD Alumni Association holds Annual Fall Symposium and Alumni Weekend

• The UK College of Dentistry hosted alumni, friends, and students for the Fall Symposium and Alumni Weekend, sponsored by the UKCD Alumni Association. The gathering started on a Friday with the awarding of two UKCD Alumni Association Scholarships in the amount of \$2,000 each to Class of 2025 members TJ Huster and Harrison Roberts (not pictured), followed by a continuing education course on financial planning and wealth management presented by 1996 and 1998 NCAA Men's Basketball Champion and UK alum Jeff Sheppard. The class of 2025 was invited by the UKCD Alumni Association to attend the course alongside other participants.

Later in the day, our alumni enjoyed Big Blue Day in Keeneland's Phoenix Room.

- During an evening reception at Spindletop Hall, Dr. Wesley Coffman ('78) and Dr. Greg White ('88) were honored as UKCD Distinguished Alumni of the Year. The reunion year for the classes of 1969, 1974, 1979, 1984, 1989, 1994, 1999, 2004, 2009, 2014 and 2019 were also celebrated at the reception.
- On Saturday, UKCD dean Dr. Jeffrey Okeson ('72) hosted a 50th Anniversary Brunch for the class of 1974 with tours of the college, highlighting updates to the building. Later that day, many alumni gathered at a tailgate and watched the UK Wildcats' Homecoming game against Vanderbilt University.

UKCD Alumni Association holds quarterly board meeting

• On December 10, 2024, the UKCD Alumni Association held its quarterly Alumni Board Meeting. Alumni board members could participate in-person and via Zoom from across the country. Dean Okeson provided an update to the board on the status of the college, and our event committee chairs updated the group on plans for our 2024/2025 signature events. At-large board members were confirmed for new 2-year terms. A moment of silence was held for alumni who had passed away since our last quarterly meeting. If you are interested in joining the alumni board, please contact Ryan Vicini at rlvici2@uky.edu

October 10 UKCD Fall Symposium and Alumni Weekend. UKCD hosted alumni, friends, and

students for the Fall Symposium and Alumni Weekend.

October 11 The University of Kentucky Alumni Association, in partnership with the UK Office for

Community Relations, held the 33rd annual Lyman T. Johnson Awards Luncheon this

afternoon in the Gatton Student Center Grand Ballroom

February 7, 2025 Barrels & Kegs Tasting and Silent Auction

13. REPORT OF UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE COLLEGE DENTISTRY.

University of Louisville School of Dentistry (ULSD)
Kentucky Dental Association Executive Board Report
Meeting Date: March 1, 2025
Submitted: February 14, 2025

As part of our commitment to maintaining a modern, high-quality environment for learning and work, the UofL School of Dentistry has made significant investments in our facilities and technology over the past two years. These updates include:

- Signage and decor refreshes in patient waiting areas
- Renovated faculty and staff lounges
- Updated furniture, décor, and technology in DMD and dental hygiene classrooms
- Decor and furniture updates in first floor corridors

Upcoming priorities include:

- Updates to GPR and oral surgery facilities in the UofL Health Jackson Street Outpatient Center (formerly the Ambulatory Care Building)
- Reconfiguration of the basement level to create additional space for student accommodations, student support services, and faculty offices
- Décor updates in remaining corridors

Student Activities

During the American Student Dental Association District 7 Conference in Indianapolis in October, the Louisville ASDA team was recognized for two awards: Best Pre-Dental Initiative and Best Website/Social Media. ULSD's Emilee Adams (DMD Class of 2027) received the sole District 7 Conference scholarship amongst all the attendees.

Louisville ASDA is also a finalist for the 2025 ASDA Gold Crown Awards. The Gold Crown Award recognizes the chapter that best supports ASDA's mission: member engagement, community service, advocacy, health & wellness, member communications, and professional development and leadership. LASDA was selected as a finalist to represent all the dental schools in District 7 and will run against the finalists from each of the other 11 districts. The winner of the 2025 Gold Crown Award to be announced at Annual Session in Kansas City, Missouri, in late February.

Dozens of students and residents presented their research at UofL's annual Research!Louisville event in September 2024. Award winners from the School of Dentistry include:

- Basic Sciences 1st Place: PGN_1777, a peptidolytic bleomycin hydrolase, is a potential tobaccoessential gene of Porphyromonas gingivalis. Jared Williams; Gwyneth Lamont; Jinlian Tan; David Scott
- Basic Sciences 2nd Place: Effect of Ionizing Radiation on the Bond Strength to Enamel. Samrat Tanwani; Renata Vasconcelos Monteiro; Fernandes Neto Constantino; Rodrigo Lins; Megan Blackburn; Christine Swanson; Javi Latorre; Grace De Souza
- Basic Sciences 3rd Place: Evaluating the Impact of Tazarotene on Wound Healing in Surgically Damaged Mouse Submandibular Gland Tissues. Abigail Hacker; Lisa Sandell
- Clinical Sciences 1st Place: Antimicrobial Properties of DETA/NONOate Impregnated Power Chains. Amanda Dilliha; Alec Mcdonald; Jinlian Tan; Toru Deguchi; Marsha Cole; Sudha Gudhimella
- Clinical Sciences 2nd Place: Accuracy of digital scan approaches for complete denture duplication. Holland Bakker; David Donatelli; Sandro Bitencourt
- Clinical Sciences 3rd Place: Comparison of soft tissue analysis between portable facial scanner (Revopoint Pop2), 3dMD face system, and Cone Beam Computed Tomography. Jung-Woo Hong; Reza Farimani; Gustavo Santaella; Toru Deguchi

Several students participated in the fall 2024 AADOCR Kentucky Section meeting. Award winners from UofL include:

• Basic Science 1st Place – Arjun Patel, Differential Growth of Treponema Denticola with gene deletions; Other Authors/Mentors: Jinlian Tan, Gwyneth Lamont, David A. Scott

- Basic Science 2nd Place Jacob Spencer, Peptoids as a Novel Therapy for Early Childhood Caries; Other Authors/Mentors: Erika Figgins, Gill Diamond
- Clinical/Clinical Translational 2nd Place Holland Bakker, Accuracy of digital scan approaches for complete denture duplication; Other Authors/Mentors: Holland Bakker, David Donatelli, Sandro Bitencourt

Jung Woo Hong and Jared Williams represented ULSD at the fall 2024 Hinman Student Research Symposium in Memphis. Abbey Wells will represent ULSD this year as the 2025 Hinman Scholar.

In late 2024, students at the UofL School of Dentistry formed a new student organization, the Special Care Dental Association. The group's goal is to get students more involved with the special needs community.

Alumni Affairs & Continuing Education

The 2024 Dental Hygiene Legacy Symposium took place at UofL's University Club on Oct. 12, 2024. Participants took part in a vendor product showcase, CE courses, networking opportunities, and the annual Woodward/Burch Floss Walk.

During fall 2024 and the first two months of 2025, we've had several opportunities to reconnect with alumni from our postgraduate programs. These opportunities included:

- The Orthodontic Alumni Council Annual Meeting, which took place at the Fifth Third Club at Lynn Family Stadium in Louisville on Oct. 25, 2024
- A gathering of periodontics faculty, residents, and alumni at the American Academy of Periodontology meeting in San Diego Oct. 31- Nov. 3, 2024
- A gathering of pediatric dentistry faculty, residents, and alumni at the Southeastern Society of Pediatric Dentistry Annual Meeting in Atlanta Jan. 10-12, 2025

Upcoming alumni events include:

- March 21, 2025 ULSD Alumni & Friends Reception at the Hinman Meeting
- April 25, 2025 ULSD Orthodontics Alumni & Friends Reception at the AAO Meeting
- May 6, 2025 ULSD Alumni Night at the Ballpark/ADA Signing Day for DMD/DH Class of 2025
- May 23, 2025 ULSD Pediatric Dentistry Alumni & Friends Reception at the AAPD Meeting
- June 6-7, 2025 Reunions for DMD and DH class years ending in 0 and 5

Upcoming ULSD-presented continuing education events include:

- March 11, 2025 Radiation Safety for the Dental Auxiliary
- March 22, 2025 Dental Assisting Delegated Duties Event full; accepting wait list registrations)
- March 29, 2025 Coronal Polishing for the Dental Auxiliary
- June 7, 2025 42nd Annual William J. Mansfield Jr. Alumni Day: How To Create a Memorable Patient Experience In YOUR Practice
- June 28, 2025 Medical Emergencies in the Dental Office

Faculty and Staff News

Dr. Gill Diamond has been appointed to the National Advisory Dental and Craniofacial Research Council.

During UofL's 2025 Celebration of Teaching and Learning Conference, Dr. Michael Metz, Dr. Cynthia Metz, Dr. Michael Metz, and Dr. Jeff Falcone received an award for the use of active learning strategies in the Dental Physiology course. Survey results showed these strategies resulted in significant

improvements in students' perceived test-taking abilities and preparedness for the Integrated National Board Dental Examination.

CMPD faculty member Dr. Richard Keeling retired at the end of 2025. We wish him well in his retirement!

Since September, the UofL School of Dentistry has welcomed the following full-time faculty:

- Dr. Noor AlAsaad started September 1, 2024, as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Diagnosis & Oral Health, Division of Periodontics
- Dr. Omar Moustafa started September 8, 2024, as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Rehabilitative & Reconstructive Dentistry, Division of Prosthodontics.
- Dr. Tim Lawrence started January 1, 2025, as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Comprehensive Dentistry (transition from part-time faculty)
- Dr. Lara Monteiro started February 1, 2025, as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Comprehensive Dentistry (transition from part-time faculty)
- Dr. Natalia Bastos Bitencourt started February 10, 2025, as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Comprehensive Dentistry
- Dr. Luiz Carlos Dias Junior started February 15, 2025, as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Diagnosis & Oral Health, Division of Endodontics

Selected Faculty Publications

- Balaha HM, Alksas A, Fattal A, Sewelam AA, Aboelmaaty W, Abdel-Ghaffar K, Deguchi T, El-Baz A. Cervical vertebral maturation assessment using an innovative artificial intelligence-based imaging analysis system. Biomedical Signal Processing and Control, Volume 100, Part B, 2025. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bspc.2024.107088
- Barros-Costa M, Britten J, Jones C, Ramage A, Cascante-Sequeira D, Blackburn M, Swanson C, Santaella GM, Scarfe WC, Oliveira-Santos C. Effective doses of scout projections in maxillofacial cone beam computed tomography. Clin Oral Invest 28, 572 (2024). https://doi.org/10.1007/s00784-024-05971-1
- Beacham AO, Call M, Janosy N, DeBoer E. Effectively addressing burnout, well-being, and resilience: Individual, team, and system approaches. Families, Systems, & Health, 42(3), 299–303. https://doi.org/10.1037/fsh0000926
- Butler Tjaden NE, Shannon SR, Seidel CW, Childers M, Aoto K, Sandell LL, Trainor PA (2025). Rdh10-mediated Retinoic Acid Signaling Regulates the Neural Crest Cell Microenvironment During ENS Formation. bioRxiv 2025.01.23.634504; doi: 10.1101/2025.01.23.634504 https://doi.org/10.1101/2025.01.23.634504
- Chang M, Felizardo HMA, Oliveira-Santos C, Gaêta-Araujo H. Influence of Metal Artifact Reduction Tool of Two Cone Beam CT on the Detection of Bone Graft Loss Around Titanium and Zirconium Implants-An Ex Vivo Diagnostic Accuracy Study. Clin Oral Implants Res. 2024 Nov 19. doi: 10.1111/clr.14381. https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/39560377/
- Cooper KN, Wielento A, Morris SC, Terekhova M, Rodriguez-Hernandez CJ, Potempa B, Carey KA, Artyomov MN, Potempa J, Bagaitkar J. Limited proteolysis of neutrophil granule proteins by the bacterial protease RgpB depletes neutrophil antimicrobial capacity, Journal of Leukocyte Biology, 2024;, qiae209, https://doi.org/10.1093/jleuko/qiae209
- Diamond G, Figgins EL, Gao D, Robinson TO, Wilson K, Gabbard JD, Anderson CD, Batra L, Sreenivasan C, Zheng J, Do U, Mulcahy B, Ryan LK, McLaughlin N, Owings AH, Dhaliwal Neha, Williams HB, Wichman TG, Galeas-Pena M, Glover SC. Regulation of Paneth cell-specific genes in COVID-19 patients and SARS-CoV-2-infected mice by quantification of mRNA from exfoliated cells in stool samples. Sci Rep 14, 31740 (2024). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-024-82098-z

- Fattal A, Swinson H, Gudhimella S, El-Baz A, Deguchi T. Shape detection of cervical vertebrae growth stage using "No Coding" Deep Learning Google's Teachable Machine tool, 21 October 2024, PREPRINT (Version 1) available at Research Square. https://doi.org/10.21203/rs.3.rs-4993472/v1
- Fischer KM, Harrison JL, O'Malley DeGaris MA, Granada TM, Hartmann J, Knabel CM, Hill M, Sekula MN. Dentists' knowledge, attitudes, and awareness regarding interprofessional collaboration with physical therapists. J Dent Educ. 2024;1-11. https://doi.org/10.1002/jdd.13718
- Goulart TS, Prado MM, Tieppo GC, Bruna Venzke Fischer, Schuldt DPV, Coelho BS, Bortoluzzi EA, Teixeira CDS, Garcia LDFR, Almeida JD. Do instrument kinematics and the apical preparation limit influence canal disinfection and bacterial extrusion?. Odontology (2025). https://doi.org/10.1007/s10266-024-01047-4
- Marschall JS, Davis SS, Rysavy O, Kushner GM. Reconstruction of Maxillary Bone Defects With Cellular Bone Matrix Allografts. Craniomaxillofacial Trauma & Reconstruction. 2024;0(0). https://doi.org/10.1177/19433875241288138
- Sadr-Eshkevari P, McGowan C, Sekula M, Sumner MK, Seligson D, Flint RL. Is weight-bearing as tolerated safe after proximal tibial metaphyseal autogenous bone harvest? A systematic review and meta-analysis. International Journal of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, 2024. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijom.2024.10.014
- Walsh JML, Miao VN, Owings AH ... Diamond G ... et al (2025). Variants and vaccines impact nasal immunity over three waves of SARS-CoV-2. Nat Immunol. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41590-024-02052-z
- Wu DK, Steel KP, Sandell LL. Chapter 25 Development of the mouse inner ear. Kaufman's Atlas of Mouse Development Supplement (Second Edition), Academic Press, 2025, Pages 405-419. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-443-23739-3.00024-9
- Stocke K, Lamont G, Tan J, Scott DA. Delineation of global, absolutely essential and conditionally essential pangenomes of Porphyromonas gingivalis. Sci Rep 14, 22247 (2024). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-024-72451-7
- Tobin SY, Smith JK, DeSalvo K, Beacham A, Chamberlain E, Cornier MA, Halliday TM (2024). A Preliminary Investigation of the Feasibility of an 8-week Mindfulness Program for Weight Loss Maintenance. Am J Health Behav, 2024;48(6):1675-1681. https://doi.org/10.5993/AJHB.48.6.18
- Widziolek M, Mieszkowska A, Marcinkowska M, Salamaga B, Folkert J, Rakus K, Chadzinska M, Potempa J, Stafford GP, Prajsnar TK, Murdoch C (2025) Gingipains protect Porphyromonas gingivalis from macrophage-mediated phagocytic clearance. PLoS Pathog 21(1): e1012821. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.ppat.1012821
- Zimny A, Płonczyńska A, Jakubowski W, Zubrzycka N, Potempa J, Sochalska M (2025). Porphyromonas gingivalis affects neutrophil pro-inflammatory activities. Front. Cell Dev. Biol. 13:1419651. doi: 10.3389/fcell.2025.1419651 https://www.frontiersin.org/journals/cell-and-developmental-biology/articles/10.3389/fcell.2025.1419651/full

Recommendations to the Executive Board:

• None

14. REPORT OF UNIVERSITY OF PIKEVILLE.

College Updates:

- Recruitment of students and faculty are currently underway. Recruitment models have been developed in keeping with the mission of the TCDM to serve rural, underserved populations.
- Current plans include admitting 50 students to the inaugural class for courses beginning in June 2026.
- Architects, engineers, and designers from EOP and Kahler Slater have completed the facility design for
 the Tanner College of Dental Medicine. The design includes a five-story building housing ninety-three
 dental operatories, a simulation laboratory with sixty-five stations, classrooms, faculty offices, digital
 laboratories, central sterilization, and the Center for Research and Education in Technology (CRET)
 Innovation Center. The structure will be built on the University of Pikeville campus adjacent to the
 Health Professions Education Building.
- A groundbreaking ceremony for the Tanner College of Dental Medicine occurred on October 4, 2024.
- The Commission on Dental Accreditation has completed its review of the application for Initial Accreditation of the Tanner College of Dental Medicine. A CODA Site Visit is scheduled for March 18 & 19, 2025.
- A 3+3 pathway to earn B.S. and D.M.D. degrees at UPIKE in six years is currently under development.
- The TCDM is collaborating with the Pike County Health Department (PCHD) on a grant supported by the Pallottine Foundation of Huntington which will assist in the provision of dental services to pediatric patients at the PCHD. Those services will begin in February 2025.
- The TCDM faculty provided two continuing education courses to the Kentucky Mountain Dental Society on 10/10/24 and 01/30/25.
- Over 2.35 million dollars was raised for the TCDM in the last guarter of 2024.

Faculty Updates:

- Dr. E.J. Newness joined the Tanner College of Dental Medicine as the Associate Dean of Clinical Affairs in October 2024.
- Dr. Anita Hale joined as an adjunct faculty in November 2024.

Recommendations to the Executive Board:

None

- 15. REPORT OF THE DENTAL DIRECTOR. Dr. Julie McKee gave a verbal report.
- **16. REPORT OF THE KENTUCKY BOARD OF DENTSISTY. Mr. Jeff Allen** gave a verbal report.
- 17. KDPAC REPORT/CONSENT CALENDAR.



KENTUCKY DENTAL POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE

20 February 2025

Make your contribution payable to:

Kentucky Dental Political Action Committee c/o Darren Greenwell, Treasurer 1920 Nelson Miller Parkway Louisville, KY 40223



Current Balance: \$ 26,000

Monthly recurring donations: \$1,250 2024 Donations \$26,200 (election year)

Through the financial contributions of member dentists,
KDPAC supports congressional candidates who
understand the importance of dentistry and its contribution to overall health.

Regardless of party affiliation, KDPAC supports candidates who will advocate for dentists and patients.

Your KDPAC dollars help keep health care policy sane. Legislators write laws. Agency workers interpret laws and create policies and rules. We need to influence rational decision making at all levels.

The KDA has become a "player" in state politics. We need contacts for all our legislators. Our goal is to have a KDA contact for every member. The Key Contact Program connects KDA members with Members of Congress to proactively drive the legislative process rather than responding to legislation after the fact. KDA Key Contacts influence the policy process at the state and federal levels by developing relationships with elected officials. By meeting and making contacts with your elected officials in several ways, you can achieve true conversations about issues important to the profession, and become a trusted advisor when bills are drafted or considered.

Any member who wants to get involved in the Key Contacts program can. If you don't have a pre-existing relationship with a legislator, we can arrange a meeting to initiate contact. If you do have a pre-existing relationship, we will make note of it and reach out to you when contact with the legislator is needed.

Please reach out to members of your component to see if they have an existing relationship with their elected officials **OR** if they would like to develop one. Contact the KDA for more information.

Chair
Samantha Shaver
Sec/Treasurer
Darren Greenwell

Shea Cheavrant
Fred Howard
Bill Lee
Garth Bobrowski
John Roy
Carson Keally
Bruce Wilson
Sean Aiken
Joe Morton
Jonathon Rich
Don Heine



Respectfully submitted, Samantha Shaver, DMD – KDPAC Chair

18. COMPONENT REPORTS/CONSENT CALENDAR.

LDS Report

LDS has had several meetings focusing on how to build membership and provide services to LDS members. We had a meet and greet with new hygienist and Dentist at Monnik tavern on January 9, 2025. On January 16,2025 we had a monthly meeting at Malone's Prime with a presentation put on by Dr Katie Kuric talking about trends in Elderly Care. At this meeting,Dr Steve Robertson and Dr Matt Milliner were present to give an update on KDA work. LDS is having a New Dentist Event on February 27th at NDX Lab.

Paul Lavelle DMD

NKY Report

I will not be able to attend March 1st as I will be at a CE course. I am unsure if Dr. Earl will be in attendance but I copied him on this email. Dr. Gold is aware I can not attend March 1st and to tell everyone to help Dr. Earl out with this transition.

Report for the NKDS:

Our most recent meeting was 1-21-2025 and Dr. McMaine the program director for UK Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery on Dental Clearance for the Medical Patient which was well attended.

We had a social event at Braxton Brewer on 11-7-24 with many members in attendance and enjoying food and door prizes provided by corporate sponsors of the event.

Our next meeting will be March 18th at Ft. Mitchell Country Club with Dr. Charette Topic: TBD

RPE

Southeastern Dental Society Component Report

The Southeastern Dental Society met on December 5, 2024 at the Depot in Corbin, KY. The event was sponsored by the United Health Foundation in partnership with the Kentucky Southeast Dental Society and the

University of Kentucky College of Dentistry. Dr. Pamela Stein presented the results and lessons learned from the grant for eradicating oral cancer in eastern Kentucky. Secondly, Dr. Jennie Ison, the division chief of oral pathology at the University of Kentucky College of Dentistry, presented an interesting update on the pathology and diagnosis of oral cancer. Dinner was provided for the course attendees as well as handouts and a new edition of the latest oral pathology textbook. The meeting was well attended and participants enjoyed the meeting.

Kaitlyn Patel, DMD President of Southeastern Dental Society 2/14/25

The KY Mtn Society has met twice this winter at Pikeville and had CE courses provided by the faculty from the new Pikeville School of Dentistry. We had 12-15 members at each of these meetings. We continue to have concerns with the Medicaid fees resulting in many providers no longer participating and dropping out. The legislature has continued to take a blind eye approach on this issue and do nothing while promising action.

The issue of non-covered services also is a hot topic with our members and are upset that the state has failed to confirm and uphold the law.

Andy Elliott DMD

19.OLD BUSINESS.

WELL BEING COMMITTEE WORK GROUP. Dr Kate VonLackum gave a verbal report. Current members are: Dr Kate VonLackum, Chair, Dr. Seve Robertson, Dr. Rachel Gold and possibly Dr. Brandon Stapelton and Dr. Robert Baldau.

Dr. Kate VonLackum announced the next meeting of the Well Being Work Group will be March 12, 2025 at 4:00pm via zoom.

WORK GROUP MEMBERSHIP. Dr. Matt Milliner asked for volunteers to complete the Work Groups.

COMPONENT HEALTH. Dr. Samantha Shaver gave a verbal report. Dr. Samantha Shaver and Dr. Ansley Depp were added to the membership of the Work Group. Dean Jill Keaton, Dr. Josh Leonard, Dr. Taylor Cox and Dr. Andy Elliott were previously added to the Work Group.

20. NEW BUSINESS.

RELIEF FUNDRAISER WITH THE ADA. It was announced the ADA is willing to work with KDA on fundraising events for the Relief Fund.

National Signing Day ULSD/UKCD. The dates for the signing days were announced. March 21, 2025 for the UK signing day and April 16, 2025 for the ULSD signing day.

UPKIE EVENT. Dean Keaton announced they have found some facilities to hold an event for the Eastern Dental Society. **Dr Charles Montague** was asked about dates. The details will be worked out and everyone will be notified.

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR.

From: Southern Roots Periodontics <office@southernrootsky.com>

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2025 12:14 PM

To: melissa@kyda.org

Subject: Re: KDA Voting Commission

Melissa,

I will be resigning my position as the NKDS representative to the executive board. I have informed the local officers and helped them find a replacement for me that is interested and motivated. As such a replacement for me on any committees will be needed. I advised this new person I would be willing to come to the next meeting with him to help get him started and comfortable. His name is Dr. Stetson Earl and his cell # is 513-889-7616 and his email is steson_earl@yahoo.com

Thank you. Ryan Estes

Dr Estes is the chairman of the KDA Budget and Finance Committee. His position will need to be filled.

Budget and Finance Committee

The Committee shall consist of the First Vice President, Chairman of the Executive Board and three Membersat-Large who shall be nominated and elected at the first Executive Board meeting during the Annual Session. The Chairman of the committee shall be the senior member.

Ryan Estes, ChairmanNKY'25Matt JohnsonGR'26BJ MillaySC'27

Samantha Shaver, First Vice President Matt Milliner, Chairman, Executive Board

Ex-officio members are the KDA President, First Vice President, Second Vice President, Secretary-Treasurer and Immediate Past President.

Dr. Matt Milliner appointed **Dr. BJ Millay** to be chair of the Budget and Finance Committee until the close of the KDA 2025 Annual Meeting..

Dr. Matt Milliner appointed **Dr. Andy Elliott** to fill the position vacated by **Dr. Ryan Estes.** The term is until the close of the 2025 KDA Annual Meeting, when someone will be appointed for a three year term by the KDA Board.

- **21. FUTURE KDA BOARD MEETINGS.** The next KDA Board meeting will June 28, 2025 at the KDA Building, August 14 at 3:30pm at the KDA Annual Meeting and August 17 immediately following the Closing of the KDA House of Delegates.
- **22. ADJOURNMENT.** The meeting was adjourned at 12:56 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. Kevin Wall Secretary/Treasurer